

Excel Academy (CA)

Board of Directors Study Session

Published on November 8, 2024 at 3:45 PM PST

Date and Time

Thursday November 14, 2024 at 10:25 AM PST

Location

Excel Academy Charter Schoo I 1 Technology Drive, Ste I-811 Irvine, CA 92618

Regus- Gateway Chula Vista 333 H Street, Suite 5000 Chula Vista, CA 91910

Zoom Meeting Information: Dial In: +1 719 359 4580 Meeting ID: 840 2933 2916 URL: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84029332916

MISSION STATEMENT

Excel Academy will provide a flexible, personalized learning experience where teachers and parents collaborate to provide academic excellence and social and emotional foundations to instill a love for learning in each individual student.

THE ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY BE CHANGED WITHOUT NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

REASONABLE LIMITATIONS MAY BE PLACED ON PUBLIC TESTIMONY

The Governing Board's presiding officer reserves the right to impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY

Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting of the Governing Board may request assistance by contacting Excel Academy Charter Schools.

Agenda

			Purpose	Presenter	Time
I.	Оре	ening Items			10:25 AM
	Α.	Call the Meeting to Order		Board President	1 m
	В.	Record Attendance Roll Call:		Board President	1 m
		William Hall, President Michael Humphrey, Vice President Steve Fraire, Clerk Susan Houle, Member Larry Alvarado, Member			
II.	Plee	dge of Allegiance			10:27 AM
	Α.	Led by Board President or designee	Discuss	William Hall	1 m
III.	Арр	prove/Adopt Agenda			10:28 AM
	Α.	Approval of Agenda for November 14, 2024 Board of Directors Study Session	Vote	William Hall	1 m
		It is recommended the Board of Directors adopt as presented, the agenda for the Board Study Session of November 14, 2024.			

Roll Call Vote:

			Purpose	Presenter	Time
William Hall					
Michael Humph	rey				
Steve Fraire					
Susan Houle					
Larry Alvarado					
Moved by	Seconded by	Ayes	Nays	Absent	

IV. Public Comments/Recognition/Reports

Please submit a Request to Speak to the Board of Directors using the chat feature on the right hand side of the Zoom platform. Please state the agenda item number that you wish to address prior to the agenda item being called by the Board President. Not more than three (3) minutes are to be allotted to any one (1) speaker, and no more than twenty (20) minutes on the same subject. This portion of the agenda is for comments, recognitions and reports to the Board and is not intended to be a question and answer period. If you have questions for the Board, please provide the Board President with a written statement and an administrator will provide answers at a later date.

V.	Adj	Adjourn to Closed Session					
	A.	The Board will consider and may act on any of the Closed Session matters.	Vote	William Hall	1 m		
		Roll Call Vote:					
		William Hall					
		Michael Humphrey					
		Steve Fraire					
		Susan Houle					
		Larry Alvarado					
		Moved by Seconded by Ayes	Nays	Absent			
VI.	Clo	sed Session			10:30 AM		
	Α.	Closed Session	Discuss	William Hall	30 m		
		1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - A	LITIGATION				
		Case No - QBLLP- Active FID 43074128					

2. CONFERENCE WITH EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - EXISTING LITIGATION

					Purpose	Presenter	Time
		Education Code	section: 56346(f)				
		Case No.: 20241	00529				
VII.	Red	convene Regular	Meeting				11:00 AM
	Α.	Report out any a	ction taken in closed	session.	Discuss	William Hall	5 m
VIII.	Ora	Oral Presentations					11:05 AM
	Α.	Excel Academy (Directors Manual	Charter Schools Boa Review	rd of	Discuss	Heidi Gasca	7 m
	В.	Ethics Assembly	Bill 2158		Discuss	Heidi Gasca	7 m
	C.		Iluation Planners for gan Anderson, Direc es		Discuss	Megan Anderson	10 m
IX.	Cal	endar					
	The	e next Regular Boa	rd Meeting will be he	eld on Decen	nber 12, 2024		
Х.	Clo	sing Items					11:29 AM
	Α.	Adjourn Meeting			Vote	William Hall	1 m
		Roll Call Vote: William Hall Michael Humphre Steve Fraire Susan Houle Larry Alvarado	€y				
		Moved by	_ Seconded by	Ayes	Nays	_Absent	

FOR MORE INFORMATION For more information concerning this agenda, contact Excel Academy Charter School.

Coversheet

Excel Academy Charter Schools Board of Directors Manual Review

Section:	VIII. Oral Presentations
Item:	A. Excel Academy Charter Schools Board of Directors Manual Review
Purpose:	Discuss
Submitted by:	
Related Material:	2024 REDLINE EACS Board of Directors Manual.pdf
	EACS Board of Directors Manual 11.14.pdf

BACKGROUND:

Revisions to the Board of Directors Manual include the following:

- Minor grammatical and structural edits to improve clarity
- Including language to indicate that compliance with the Brown Act goes into determining whether or not an agenda item is appropriate for discussion in open or closed session
- Included the Executive Director/CEO Evaluation overview



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ROLE OF THE BOARD	1-2
GOVERNANCE STANDARDS	2
PUBLIC STATEMENTS	
DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL-	3-4
PRIVILEGED INFORMATION	
BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC	4
COMMUNICATIONS	
LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY	5
OATH OR AFFIRMATION & EXHIBIT	
ORIENTATION	6
BOARD TRAINING	
REMUNERATION & REIMBURSEMENT	8
BOARD POLICIES	8-9
AGENDA MEETING MATERIALS	9-10
MEETING CONDUCT	
BOARD SELF-EVALUATION	
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO EVALUATION	12
XECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION	13-15
PLANNING	



ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors (Board) is elected to provide leadership and oversight of the nonprofit corporation that operates charter school(s). The Board shall ensure that the nonprofit corporation is responsive to the values, beliefs, and priorities of the communities it serves.

The Board shall work with the

Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director to fulfill its major responsibilities, which include:

- Setting the direction for the nonprofit corporation through a process that involves the counties, communities, parents/guardians, students, and staff and is focused on student learning and achievement
- 1. Establishing an effective and efficient organizational structure for the nonprofit corporation by:
 - a. Employing the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and setting policy for hiring of other personnel
 - b. Overseeing the development and adoption of policies
 - c. Establishing academic expectations and adopting the curriculum and instructional materials
 - d. Establishing budget priorities and adopting the budget
 - e. Providing safe, adequate facilities that support the school's operations

3. Providing support to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and other staff as they carry out the Board's direction by:

- a. Establishing and adhering to standards of responsible governance
- b.Making decisions and providing resources that support the nonprofit corporation priorities and goals
- c. Upholding Board policies
- d. Being knowledgeable about school programs and efforts in order to serve as effective spokespersons

4. Ensuring accountability to the public for the performance of the school(s) and compliance with the charter(s) by:

- a. Establishing and approving all major educational and operational policies
- b. Approval all major contracts
- c. Approving the charter school's annual budget and overseeing the charter school's fiscal affairs
- d. Hearing expulsion recommendations at scheduled Board of Directors' meetings to meet the required timeframe for expulsions
- e. Evaluating the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director who oversees the day-to-day operations of the charter school and implementing the policy direction of the Board
- f. Developing annual goals for the charter school and long range plans with input from the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, teachers, and parent/guardian advisory council members
- g. Receiving reports from, and providing recommendations to, the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director relative to long-term strategic planning

h. Assessing the charter school's goals, objectives, academic achievement/student progress, financial status, and any need for redirection

i. Evaluating charter school and student performance

5. Providing leadership and advocacy on behalf of students, the educational program, and public education in order to build support within the local counties and communities.





The Board believes that its primary responsibility is to act in the best interests of every student in the school(s). The Board is also committed to parents/guardians, counties, communities, employees, the State of California, and the laws pertaining to public education, and established as well as established school policies of the school(s). To maximize Board effectiveness and public confidence in Board governance, Board members are expected to govern responsibly and hold themselves to the highest standards of ethical conduct.

The Board expects its members to work with each other and the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director to ensure that a high-quality education is provided to each student. Each individual Board member shall:

- 1. Keep learning and achievement for all students as the primary focus
- 2. Value, support and advocate for public education
- 3. Recognize and respect differences of perspective and style on the Board and among staff, students, parents, and the counties and communities it serves
- 4. Act with dignity, and understand the implications of demeanor and behavior
- 5. Keep confidential matters confidential
- 6. Participate in professional development and commit the time and energy necessary to be an informed and effective leader
- 7. Understand the distinctions between Board and staff roles, and refrain from performing management functions that are the responsibility of the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and other staff
- 8. Understand that authority rests with the Board as a whole and not with individuals

Board members shall also assume collective responsibility for building unity and creating a positive organizational culture. To operate effectively, the Board shall have a unity of purpose and:

1. Keep the the nonprofit corporation focused on learning and achievement for all students

- 2. Communicate a common vision
- 3. Operate openly, with trust and integrity
- 4. Govern in a dignified and professional manner, treating everyone with civility and respect
- 5. Govern within Board-adopted policies and procedures
- 6. Take collective responsibility for the Board's performance
- 7. Annually evaluate its own effectiveness
- 8. Ensure opportunities for the diverse range of views in the students, staff, counties and communities it serves to inform Board deliberations.

PUBLIC STATEMENTS

The Board recognizes its members may participate in public discourse on matters of civic or community interest matters, including those involving the nonprofit corporation, and their right to freely express their personal views freely. However, to ensure communication of a consistent, unified message communication regarding nonprofit corporation issues, Board members are expected to respect the authority of the Board to choose its representatives to communicate its positions and to abide by established protocols.

All public statements authorized to be made on behalf of the Board shall be made by the Board President or, if appropriate, by the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or other designated representative.

When speaking for the nonprofit corporation, the Board encourages its spokespersons to exercise restraint and tact and to communicate the message in a manner that promotes public confidence in the Board's leadership.

Board spokespersons shall not disclose confidential information or information received in closed session except when authorized by a majority of the Board, nor shall Board spokespersons express any support for (or opposition to) any candidate(s) for political office. The Board must ensure that any statements or informational materials concerning proposed legislation or political candidates are provided in a neutral, nonpartisan and educational manner that is consistent with state and federal restrictions for 501(c)(3) nonprofits and public agencies.

When speaking to community groups, members of the public, or the media, individual Board members should recognize that their statements may be perceived as reflecting the views and positions of the Board. Board members have a responsibility to identify personal viewpoints as such and not as the viewpoint of the Board.

In addition, the Board encourages members who participate on social networking sites, blogs, or other discussion or informational sites to conduct themselves in a respectful, courteous, and professional manner and to model good behavior for students and the community. Such electronic communications are subject to the same standards and protocols established for other forms of communication. Furthermore, the Brown Act prohibits Board members from responding directly to any community on an internet-based social media platform regarding a matter that is within the subject-matter jurisdiction of the Board (e.g., charter school matters) that is made, posted, or shared by any other Board member.

DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED INFORMATION

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining the confidentiality of information acquired as part of a Board member's official duties. Confidential/privileged information shall be released only to the extent authorized by law and upon approval from the Board.

Disclosure of Closed Session Information

A Board member shall not disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session to a person not entitled to receive such information, unless a majority of the Board has authorized its disclosure. Confidential information means a communication made in a closed session that is specifically related to the basis for the Board to meet lawfully in closed session.

Other Disclosures

A Board member shall not disclose, for pecuniary gain, confidential information acquired in the course of his/her official duties. Confidential information includes information that is not a public record subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act, information that by law may not be disclosed, or information that may have a material financial effect on the Board member.

Other Disclosures (continued)

The Board may take action against any person for disclosing confidential information.

Disclosures excepted from this prohibition are those made to law enforcement officials when reporting on improper governmental activities.

BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

The Board recognizes that electronic communication is an efficient and convenient way for Board members to communicate and expedite the exchange of information within the nonprofit corporation and with members of the public. Board members shall exercise caution so as to ensure that electronic communications are not used as a means for the Board to deliberate outside of an agendized Board meeting nor to circumvent the public's right to access records regarding the nonprofit corporation.

A quorum of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized Board meeting, use a series of electronic communications of any kind including emails, texts, or communications on an internet-based social media platform, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject-matter jurisdiction of the Board (e.g., charter school matters).

Examples of permissible electronic communications concerning the nonprofit corporation include, but are not limited to, dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of activities from the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director sent to Board members, and reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places. Board members must not use the "reply all" function via email to respond to these communications.

In addition, Board members may use electronic communications to discuss matters that do not pertain to the nonprofit corporation, regardless of the number of Board members participating in the discussion. However, Board members must be clear that such communications regarding any candidates for political office or proposed legislation are their own personal viewpoints and do not represent the Board, the nonprofit corporation or the school.

Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications conform to the same standards and protocols established for other forms of communication. A Board member may respond, as appropriate, to an electronic communication received from a member of the community and should make clear that their response does not necessarily reflect the views of the Board as a whole. Any complaint or request for information should be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director in accordance with Board policies and procedures so that the issue may receive proper consideration and be handled through the appropriate nonprofit corporation process. As appropriate, communication received from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director.

To the extent possible, electronic communications regarding any nonprofit corporation-related business shall be transmitted through a nonprofit corporation-provided device or account. Conversely, personal communications shall not be transmitted through a nonprofit corporation-provided device or account, nor shall communications regarding candidates for political office or proposed legislation without prior approval from the Board. Board members should keep in mind that such electronic communications (those transmitted through a provided device or account, or those pertaining to charter school matters) may be subject to public disclosure under the Public Records Act.

LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY

The Board recognizes that the Board governs the nonprofit corporation and that a Board member has no individual authority. Board members shall hold the interests of the nonprofit corporation above any partisan principle, group interest, or personal interest.

Unless agreed to by the Board as a whole, individual members of the Board shall not exercise any administrative responsibility with respect to the schools or command the services of any school employee. Individual Board members shall submit requests for information to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director. Board members shall refer Board-related correspondence to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director for forwarding to the Board or for placement on the Board's agenda, as appropriate.

Individual Board members do not have the authority to resolve complaints. Any Board member approached directly by a person with a complaint should refer the complainant to the Executive Director or designee so that the problem may be properly considered receive proper consideration and be handled through the appropriate nonprofit corporation process.

A Board member whose child is attending a nonprofit corporation school should be aware of their role as a Board member when interacting with nonprofit corporation employees about their child.

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director designee shall provide a copy of the state's open meeting laws (Brown Act) to each Board member and to anyone who is elected to the Board but has not yet assumed office.

Board members and persons elected to the Board who have not yet assumed office are responsible for complying with the requirements of the Brown Act.



OATH OR AFFIRMATION

It is a tradition of the Board that, prior to entering office, all Board members take an oath or affirmation.

The following oath may be administered and certified by the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and/or the Board President:

"I, _____ do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter."

ORIENTATION

The Board recognizes the importance of providing all newly elected Board members with support and information to assist them in becoming effective members of the Board. Incoming Board members are provided an orientation designed to build their knowledge of the nonprofit corporation and an understanding of the responsibilities of their position. Such orientation may include the provision of information, support, and/or training related to Board functions, policies, protocols, and standards of conduct.

As early as possible following the election of Board members, one or more orientation sessions may be held during open meeting(s) of the Board or scheduled 1:1 meetings with the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and other staff. The Board President and the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall develop an agenda for the meeting(s) and shall-identify resources that may be useful for incoming Board members.

Upon their election, incoming Board members shall be provided a copy of the Brown Act and informed that, pursuant to Government Code 54952.1, they must conform to the Act's requirements as if they had already assumed office. Incoming Board members must also complete a Form 700 within 30 days of assuming office in accordance with the Political Reform Act. Additional information for incoming Board members may include, but is not limited to, Board bylaws related to the limits of individual Board member authority, the conduct of Board meetings, and other Board operations; governance standards for ethical conduct; legal requirements related to conflict of interest and prohibited political activity; protocols for speaking with nonprofit corporation staff, members of the public, and the media; and publications on effective governance practices.

In addition, the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall provide incoming Board members with specific background information regarding the nonprofit corporation, including, but not limited to, the nonprofit corporation's vision and goals statements, local control and accountability plan and other comprehensive plans, student demographic data, student achievement data, nonprofit corporation policy manual, nonprofit corporation budget, and minutes of recent open Board meetings.

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee may offer incoming Board members a tour of the nonprofit corporation's administrative offices and facilities, and may introduce them to the nonprofit corporation and charter school site administrators and other staff.

Incoming members are encouraged, at the nonprofit corporation's expense and with approval of the Board, to attend charter school organization workshops and conferences relevant to the needs of the individual member, the Board as a whole, or the nonprofit corporation.







BOARD TRAINING

The Board believes that the Board's ability to effectively and responsibly govern the nonprofit corporation is essential to promoting student achievement, building positive community relations, and protecting the public interest in the nonprofit corporation that operates charter school(s). Board members shall be provided sufficient opportunities for professional development that helps them understand their responsibilities, stay abreast of new developments in education, and develop boardsmanship skills.

The Board and/or the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall provide an orientation to newly elected or appointed Board members which includes comprehensive information regarding Board roles, policies, and procedures and the nonprofit corporation's vision and goals, operations, and current challenges. Throughout their first term, Board members shall continue to participate in additional educational opportunities designed to assist them in understanding the principles of effective governance, including, but not limited to, information on school finance and budgets, student achievement and assessment, labor relations, community relations, program evaluation, open meeting laws (the Brown Act), conflict of interest laws, and other topics necessary to govern effectively and in compliance with law.

Board members will be responsible for participating in required training programs, including but not limited to ethics training as set forth in AB 2158 (commencing on January 1, 2025). All Board members are encouraged to continuously participate in advanced training in order to reinforce boardsmanship skills and build knowledge related to key education issues. Such activities may include online courses, webinars, webcasts, and in-person attendance at workshops and conferences. In addition, workshops and consultations may be held within the nonprofit corporation on issues that involve the entire governance team.

Board members may attend a conference or similar public gathering with other Board members and/or with the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee in order to develop common knowledge and understanding of an issue or engage in team-building exercises. In such cases, a majority of the Board members shall not discuss among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled program, business of a specified nature that is within the nonprofit corporation's jurisdiction, so as not to violate the Brown Act open meeting laws.

Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, on the Board training activities they attend, for the purpose of sharing the acquired knowledge or skills with the full Board and enlarging the benefit of the activity to the Board and nonprofit corporation.

Powered by BoardOnTrack

REMUNERATION & REIMBURSEMENT

Compensation

Each member of the Board of Directors (Board) may receive a monthly compensation of \$650.00.

On an annual basis, the Board may adjust the compensation of Board members in an amount that is just and reasonable to the nonprofit corporation based on the services performed by the Board members and in consideration of comparable compensation that is paid to individuals holding similar positions at similarly-sized nonprofit organizations in the same geographic location. The Board shall adopt such compensation by resolution based on the comparable analysis, which may include a compensation study.

Board members are not required to accept payment for meetings attended.

A member may be compensated for meetings they missed when the Board finds that they were performing designated services for the nonprofit corporation that operates charter school(s) at the time of the meeting or that they were absent because of illness, jury duty, or a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Board members shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred when performing authorized services for the nonprofit corporation. Expenses for travel, telephone, business meals, or other authorized purposes shall be in accordance with policies established for the nonprofit corporation personnel and at the same reimbursement rate.

Board members shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred when performing services directed by the Board.

Authorized purposes may include, but are not limited to, attendance at educational seminars or conferences designed to improve Board members' skills and knowledge; participation in regional, state, or national organizations whose activities affect the nonprofit corporation's interests; attendance at the nonprofit corporation or community events; and meetings with state or federal officials on issues of community concern. Personal expenses shall be the responsibility of individual Board members. Personal expenses include, but are not limited to, the personal portion of any trip, alcohol, entertainment, laundry, expenses of any family member who is accompanying the Board member on the nonprofit corporation-related business, personal use of an automobile, and personal losses and traffic violation fees incurred while at the nonprofit corporation.

Any questions regarding the propriety of a particular type of expense should be resolved pursuant to the fiscal policy.

BOARD POLICIES

The Board shall adopt written policies to convey its expectations for actions that will be taken in the nonprofit corporation, clarify roles and responsibilities of the Board and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, and communicate board philosophy and positions to students, staff, parents/guardians, and the community.

The nonprofit corporation's policy development process may be revised or expanded as needed based on the issue being considered, the need for more information, or the desire to provide greater opportunities for consultation and public input.

Policies shall become effective upon Board adoption or at a future date if so designated by the Board at the time of adoption.

The Board shall prescribe and enforce rules for its own governance consistent with state law and regulations.

Bylaws governing Board operations may be amended in accordance with the process set forth in the Bylaws.

BOARD POLICIES (CONT.)

Monitoring and Evaluation

At any time, the Board and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee may determine that progress reports to the Board on the implementation and/or effectiveness of the policy should be scheduled. If so, the Board and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall agree upon a timeline and, as applicable, measures for evaluating the effectiveness of the policy in achieving its purpose.

Access to Policies

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall provide for public access to current Boardadopted policies, such as by posting policies to the website or making them available upon request.

As necessary, the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall notify staff, parents/guardians, students, and other stakeholders whenever a policy that affects them is adopted or revised. They may determine the appropriate communication strategy depending on the issue. Policies shall be posted on the website when required by law.

AGENDA & MEETING MATERIALS

Any board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request shall be submitted in writing to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee with supporting documents and information.

The Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director shall decide whether a request from a member of the public is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Items not within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board may not be placed on the agenda. In addition, before placing the item on the agenda, the Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director shall determine if the item is merely a request for information or whether the issue is covered by an existing policy or administrative regulation.

If the Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director do not place an item on the agenda, the Board member may request the Board to take action to determine whether the item shall be placed on the agenda.

The Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director shall also decide, in accordance with the Brown Act, whether an agenda item is appropriate for discussion in open or closed session, and whether the item should be an action item subject to Board vote or an information item that does not require immediate action.

In order to promote efficient meetings, the Board may bundle a number of items and act upon them together by a single vote through the use of a consent agenda. Consent items shall be items of a routine nature and items for which Board discussion is not anticipated and for which the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director recommends approval. When any Board member requests the removal of an item from the consent agenda, the item shall be removed and given individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item.

At least 72 hours before each regular meeting, each Board member shall be provided a digital copy of the agenda and other available documents pertinent to the meeting.



AGENDA & MEETING MATERIALS (CONT.)

When special meetings are called, board members shall receive, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting, notice of the business to be transacted.

Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may confer directly with the Executive Director/CEO or designee to ask questions and/or request additional information on agenda items. However, a majority of Board members shall not, outside of a noticed meeting, directly or through intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take action on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

MEETING CONDUCT

All Board meetings shall begin on time and shall follow an agenda prepared in accordance with board Bylaws and posted and distributed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (open meeting requirements), the Charter Schools Act and other applicable laws.

The Board shall adopt and enforce a policy for public participation at meetings, which shall include the requirements of the Charter Schools Act for establishing two-way conference locations and posting recordings of the meetings.

The Board believes that late night meetings deter public participation, can affect the Board's decision-making ability, and can be a burden to staff. Regular board meetings shall be held between the hours of 8:00am to 4:00pm; if any Special or Emergency Board Meetings are held, they shall be adjourned by 10:00 p.m. unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority of the Board. The meeting shall be extended no more than once and subsequently may be adjourned to a later date.

Minutes

The Board recognizes that maintaining accurate minutes of Board meetings helps foster public trust in Board governance and provides a record of Board actions for use by nonprofit corporation staff and the public.

The Secretary shall keep minutes and record all official Board actions. The Board's minutes shall be public records and shall be made available to the public upon request.

The minutes of Board meetings shall include, but not be limited to:

MEETING CONDUCT (CONT.)

1. A notation of which Board members are present, in person or by teleconference, and whether a member is not present for part of the meeting due to late arrival and/or early departure

2. A list of the public comments made on agendized items and non-agendized topics

3. The specific language of each motion and the names of the Board members who made and seconded the motion

5. Any action taken by the Board, and the vote or abstention on that action of each Board member present

Upon request by a student's parent/guardian, or by the student if age 18 or older, the minutes shall not include the student's or parent/guardian's address, telephone number, date of birth, or email address, or the student's name or other directory information as defined in Education Code 49061. The request to exclude such information shall be made in writing to the Secretary.

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall distribute a copy of the "unapproved" minutes of the previous meeting(s) with the agenda at a subsequent regular meeting. The Board shall approve the minutes as circulated or with necessary amendments.

Upon approval by the Board, the minutes shall be signed by the Board President and Board Clerk. Official Board minutes shall be stored in a secure location and shall be retained in accordance with law.

Any minutes kept for Board meetings held in closed session shall be kept separately from the minutes or recordings of regular and special meetings. Minutes of closed sessions are not public records.

BOARD SELF EVALUATION

The Board shall annually conduct a self-evaluation in order to demonstrate accountability to the community and ensure that nonprofit corporation governance effectively supports student achievement and the attainment of the nonprofit corporation's vision and goals.

The evaluation may address any area of Board responsibility, including, but not limited to, Board performance in relation to vision setting, curriculum, personnel, finance, policy development, collective bargaining, community relations, and advocacy. The evaluation may also address objectives related to Board meeting operations, relationships among Board members, relationship with the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, understanding of Board and Executive Director roles and responsibilities, communication skills, or other governance or boardsmanship skills.

The Board shall evaluate itself as a whole. Individual Board members are also expected to use the evaluation process as an opportunity to assess and set goals for their own personal performance.

BOARD SELF EVALUATION (CONT.)

Each year, the Board, with assistance from the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, shall determine an evaluation method or instrument that measures key components of Board responsibility and previously identified performance objectives. Visual and/or audio recordings of a Board meeting may only be used as an evaluation tool when consent is given by all Board members.

Any discussion involving the Board's self-evaluation shall be conducted in open session.

At the request of the Board, a facilitator may be used to assist with the evaluation process. The Board may invite the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or other individual(s) with pertinent information to provide input into the evaluation process.

Following the evaluation, the Board may set goals, define and/or refine protocols, and establish priorities and objectives for the following year's evaluation. The Board may also develop strategies for strengthening Board performance based on identified areas of need, including, but not limited to, additional training or mentorship.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO EVALUATION

The Board and Executive Director/CEO shall annually develop and agree upon performance goals and objectives that shall serve as the basis for an annual evaluation. The evaluation process shall follow a timeline mutually agreed to by the Board and the Executive Director/CEO.

The Board shall devote a portion of at least one meeting annually for discussion and evaluation of the performance and working relationship between the Executive Director/CEO and the Board. Such meetings shall be conducted in closed session, unless mutually agreed otherwise, and allow the option to deliberate privately without the Executive Director/CEO present when discussing the final conclusions of an evaluation.



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION PI ANNING

Short-Term Absence Procedures

The Board should follow the procedures listed below in the event the Executive Director/CEO is temporarily unable to fulfill their duties due to an emergency or planned short term absence.

- 1. Immediate Notification: The Executive Director/CEO or Assistant Director of Human Resources will inform the Board President as soon as possible about the temporary incapacity or absence and will support the Board with communication, as directed by the **Board President**
- 2. Special Board Meeting: As needed, convene a Special Board meeting to discuss the situation and potential impact.
- 3. Acting Executive Director/CEO: Consult with Human Resources for the name of the Executive Director/CEO's recommended Acting Executive Director/CEO.
- 4. Review and Monitor: The situation should be reviewed at regular intervals to decide if the Acting Executive Director/CEO should continue in the role or if the regular Executive Director/CEO can resume duties.
- 5. Transition Back: Once the Executive Director/CEO resumes duties, a transition plan should be established to ensure a smooth return.



Emergency Vacancy Procedures

This section provides a guide for the Board of Directors in case the seat of the Executive Director/CEO becomes permanently vacant through unplanned circumstances. This ensures the continuity of leadership and minimizes disruption in the organization.

- 1. Immediate Notification: The Assistant Director of Human Resources will inform the Board President as soon as possible about the emergent vacancy and will support the Board with communication, as directed by the Board President
- 2. Special Board Meeting: Convene a Special Board meeting within 48 hours to discuss the situation and potential impact.
- 3. Interim Executive Director/CEO: Consult with Human Resources for the name of the Executive Director/CEO's recommended Interim Executive Director/CEO.
- 4. Search Committee: If needed, appoint an Executive Director/CEO Search Committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board's Directors with the support of other staff as appropriate, such as the Assistant Director of Human Resources. Define the committee's scope, authority, and limitations in writing. Consider and decide whether the Search Committee will conduct the search itself or employ a recruiter or search firm to help find candidates. If using a recruiter/search firm, the Search Committee will be its primary point of contact and will guide the search outside of full Board meetings.
- 5. Interviews and Selections: Establish unbiased, pre-defined criteria for candidate assessment. Conduct interviews and select a candidate based on these criteria. Keep detailed records for compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity laws.
- 6. Contract Development: Involve legal counsel to draft and review the employment contract. Ensure alignment with state and federal employment laws.
- 7. Public Announcement: In the open session of a Regular Board Meeting, the Board President or Assistant Director of Human Resources will verbally summarize the employment contract's salary and benefits provisions for the Board and the public before the Board votes to approve the contract.
- 8. Transition Plan: Develop a comprehensive transition plan for both the outgoing Interim Executive Director/CEO and incoming Executive Director/CEO Powered by BoardOnTrack

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION PLANNING (CONT.)

Planned Vacancy Procedures

This section provides a guide for the Board of Directors in case the seat of the Executive Director/CEO becomes vacant through planned circumstances. This ensures the continuity of leadership and minimizes disruption in the organization.

Option 1 :

During the course of the Executive Director/CEO's active employment, the Executive Director/CEO will develop a formal leadership pipeline to identify and nurture talent at all levels of the organization. The Executive Director/CEO will arrange for a transition period where they mentor the successor, in order to ensure a smooth transfer of knowledge and responsibilities.

- 1. **Initial Notice:** The Executive Director/CEO should provide written notice of departure as stipulated in their contract, including a minimum notice period.
- 2. **Board Meeting:** Convene a Special Board Meeting to initiate a plan and timeline for the vacancy.
- 3. **Contract Development:** Involve legal counsel to draft and review the employment contract. Ensure alignment with state and federal employment laws.
- 4. **Public Announcement:** In the open session of a Regular Board Meeting, the Board President or Assistant Director of Human Resources will verbally summarize the employment contract's salary and benefits provisions for the Board and the public before the Board votes to approve the contract.
- 5. **Transition Plan:** The Executive Director/CEO will arrange for a transition period where they mentor the successor, in order to ensure a smooth transfer of knowledge and responsibilities.





Option 2:

- 1. **Initial Notice:** The Executive Director/CEO should provide written notice of departure as stipulated in their contract, including a minimum notice period.
- 2. Board Meeting: Convene a Special Board Meeting to initiate a plan and timeline for the vacancy.
- 3. Search Committee: If needed, appoint an Executive Director/CEO Search Committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board's Directors with the support of other staff as appropriate, such as the Assistant Director of Human Resources. Define the committee's scope, authority, and limitations in writing. Consider and decide whether the Search Committee will conduct the search itself or employ a recruiter or search firm to help find candidates. If using a recruiter/search firm, the Search Committee will be its primary point of contact and will guide the search outside of full Board meetings.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION PLANNING (CONT.)





4. Interviews and Selections: Conduct interviews and select a candidate based on unbiased and

predefined criteria. Keep detailed records for compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity laws.

5. Contract Development: Involve legal counsel to draft and review the employment contract. Ensure

alignment with state and federal employment laws.

6. Public Announcement: In the open session of a Regular Board Meeting, the Board President or Assistant

Director of Human Resources will verbally summarize the employment contract's salary and benefits

provisions for the Board and the public before the Board votes to approve the contract.

7. Transition Plan: Develop a comprehensive transition plan for both outgoing and incoming Executive

Director/CEO



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ROLE OF THE BOARD	1-2
GOVERNANCE STANDARDS	2
PUBLIC STATEMENTS	
DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL-	3-4
PRIVILEGED INFORMATION	
BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC	4
COMMUNICATIONS	
LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY	5
OATH OR AFFIRMATION & EXHIBIT	
ORIENTATION	6
BOARD TRAINING	
REMUNERATION & REIMBURSEMENT	8
BOARD POLICIES	8-9
AGENDA MEETING MATERIALS	9-10
MEETING CONDUCT	
BOARD SELF-EVALUATION	
XECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION	
PLANNING	



ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors (Board) is elected to provide leadership and oversight of the nonprofit corporation that operates charter school(s). The Board shall ensure that the nonprofit corporation is responsive to the values, beliefs, and priorities of the communities it serves.

The Board shall work with the

Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director to fulfill its major responsibilities, which include:

- Setting the direction for the nonprofit corporation through a process that involves the counties, communities, parents/guardians, students, and staff and is focused on student learning and achievement
- 1. Establishing an effective and efficient organizational structure for the nonprofit corporation by:
 - a. Employing the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and setting policy for hiring of other personnel
 - b. Overseeing the development and adoption of policies
 - c. Establishing academic expectations and adopting the curriculum and instructional materials
 - d. Establishing budget priorities and adopting the budget
 - e. Providing safe, adequate facilities that support the school's operations

3. Providing support to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and other staff as they carry out the Board's direction by:

- a. Establishing and adhering to standards of responsible governance
- b.Making decisions and providing resources that support the nonprofit corporation priorities and goals
- c.Upholding Board policies
- d. Being knowledgeable about school programs and efforts to serve as effective spokespersons

4. Ensuring accountability to the public for the performance of the school(s) and compliance with the charter(s) by:

- a. Establishing and approving all major educational and operational policies
- b. Approval all major contracts
- c. Approving the charter school's annual budget and overseeing the charter school's fiscal affairs
- d. Hearing expulsion recommendations at scheduled Board of Directors' meetings to meet the required timeframe for expulsions
- e. Evaluating the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director who oversees the day-to-day operations of the charter school and implementing the policy direction of the Board
- f. Developing annual goals for the charter school and long range plans with input from the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, teachers, and parent/guardian advisory council members
- g. Receiving reports from, and providing recommendations to, the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director relative to long-term strategic planning

h. Assessing the charter school's goals, objectives, academic achievement/student progress, financial status, and any need for redirection

i. Evaluating charter school and student performance

5. Providing leadership and advocacy on behalf of students, the educational program, and public education to build support within the local counties and communities.



GOVERNANCE STANDARDS

The Board believes its primary responsibility is to act in the best interests of every student in the school(s). The Board is also committed to parents/guardians, counties, communities, employees, the State of California, the laws pertaining to public education, and established school policies. To maximize Board effectiveness and public confidence in Board governance, Board members are expected to govern responsibly and hold themselves to the highest standards of ethical conduct.

The Board expects its members to work with each other and the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director to ensure that a high-quality education is provided to each student. Each Board member shall:

- 1. Keep learning and achievement for all students as the primary focus
- 2. Value, support and advocate for public education
- 3. Recognize and respect differences of perspective and style on the Board and among staff, students, parents, and the counties and communities it serves
- 4. Act with dignity, and understand the implications of demeanor and behavior
- 5. Keep confidential matters confidential
- 6. Participate in professional development and commit the time and energy necessary to be an informed and effective leader
- 7. Understand the distinctions between Board and staff roles, and refrain from performing management functions that are the responsibility of the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and other staff
- 8. Understand that authority rests with the Board as a whole and not with individuals

Board members shall also assume collective responsibility for building unity and creating a positive organizational culture. To operate effectively, the Board shall have a unity of purpose and:

1. Keep the the nonprofit corporation focused on learning and achievement for all students

- 2. Communicate a common vision
- 3. Operate openly, with trust and integrity
- 4. Govern in a dignified and professional manner, treating everyone with civility and respect
- 5. Govern within Board-adopted policies and procedures
- 6. Take collective responsibility for the Board's performance
- 7. Annually evaluate its own effectiveness
- Ensure opportunities for diverse views in the students, staff, counties and communities it serves to inform Board deliberations.

PUBLIC STATEMENTS

The Board recognizes its members may participate in public discourse on civic or community interest matters, including those involving the nonprofit corporation, and their right to express their personal views. However, to ensure consistent, unified communication regarding nonprofit corporation issues, Board members are expected to respect the authority of the Board to choose its representatives to communicate its positions and to abide by established protocols.

All public statements authorized to be made on behalf of the Board shall be made by the Board President or, if appropriate, by the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or other designated representative.

When speaking for the nonprofit corporation, the Board encourages its spokespersons to exercise restraint and tact and to communicate the message in a manner that promotes public confidence in the Board's leadership.

Board spokespersons shall not disclose confidential information or information received in closed session except when authorized by a majority of the Board, nor shall Board spokespersons express any support for (or opposition to) any candidate(s) for political office. The Board must ensure that any statements or informational materials concerning proposed legislation or political candidates are provided in a neutral, nonpartisan and educational manner consistent with state and federal restrictions for 501(c)(3) nonprofits and public agencies.

When speaking to community groups, members of the public, or the media, individual Board members should recognize that their statements may be perceived as reflecting the views and positions of the Board. Board members have a responsibility to identify personal viewpoints as such and not as the viewpoint of the Board.

In addition, the Board encourages members who participate on social networking sites, blogs, or other discussion or informational sites to conduct themselves in a respectful, courteous, and professional manner and to model good behavior for students and the community. Such electronic communications are subject to the same standards and protocols established for other forms of communication. Furthermore, the Brown Act prohibits Board members from responding directly to any community on an internet-based social media platform regarding a matter that is within the subject-matter jurisdiction of the Board (e.g., charter school matters) that is made, posted, or shared by any other Board member.

DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED INFORMATION

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining the confidentiality of information acquired as part of a Board member's official duties. Confidential/privileged information shall be released only to the extent authorized by law and upon approval from the Board.

Disclosure of Closed Session Information

A Board member shall not disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session to a person not entitled to receive such information, unless a majority of the Board has authorized its disclosure. Confidential information means a communication made in a closed session that is specifically related to the basis for the Board to meet lawfully in closed session.

Other Disclosures

A Board member shall not disclose, for pecuniary gain, confidential information acquired in the course of his/her official duties. Confidential information includes information that is not a public record subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act, information that by law may not be disclosed, or information that may have a material financial effect on the Board member.

Other Disclosures (continued)

The Board may take action against any person for disclosing confidential information.

Disclosures excepted from this prohibition are those made to law enforcement officials when reporting on improper governmental activities.

BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

The Board recognizes that electronic communication is an efficient and convenient way for Board members to communicate and expedite the exchange of information within the nonprofit corporation and with members of the public. Board members shall exercise caution to ensure that electronic communications are not used as a means for the Board to deliberate outside of an agendized Board meeting nor to circumvent the public's right to access records regarding the nonprofit corporation.

A quorum of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized Board meeting, use a series of electronic communications of any kind including emails, texts, or communications on an internet-based social media platform, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject-matter jurisdiction of the Board (e.g., charter school matters).

Examples of permissible electronic communications concerning the nonprofit corporation include, but are not limited to, dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of activities from the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director sent to Board members, and reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places. Board members must not use the "reply all" function via email to respond to these communications.

In addition, Board members may use electronic communications to discuss matters that do not pertain to the nonprofit corporation, regardless of the number of Board members participating in the discussion. However, Board members must be clear that such communications regarding any candidates for political office or proposed legislation are their own personal viewpoints and do not represent the Board, the nonprofit corporation or the school.

Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications conform to the same standards and protocols established for other forms of communication. A Board member may respond, as appropriate, to an electronic communication received from a member of the community and should make clear that their response does not necessarily reflect the views of the Board as a whole. Any complaint or request for information should be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director in accordance with Board policies and procedures so that the issue may receive proper consideration and be handled through the appropriate nonprofit corporation process. As appropriate, communication received from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive from the media shall be forwarded to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director.

To the extent possible, electronic communications regarding any nonprofit corporation-related business shall be transmitted through a nonprofit corporation-provided account. Conversely, personal communications shall not be transmitted through a nonprofit corporation-provided device or account, nor shall communications regarding candidates for political office or proposed legislation without prior approval from the Board. Board members should keep in mind that such electronic communications (those transmitted through a provided device or account, or those pertaining to charter school matters) may be subject to public disclosure under the Public Records Act.

LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY

The Board recognizes that the Board governs the nonprofit corporation and that a Board member has no individual authority. Board members shall hold the interests of the nonprofit corporation above any partisan principle, group interest, or personal interest.

Unless agreed to by the Board as a whole, individual members of the Board shall not exercise any administrative responsibility with respect to the schools or command the services of any school employee. Individual Board members shall submit requests for information to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director. Board members shall refer Board-related correspondence to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director for forwarding to the Board or for placement on the Board's agenda, as appropriate.

Individual Board members do not have the authority to resolve complaints. Any Board member approached directly by a person with a complaint should refer the complainant to the Executive Director or designee so that the problem may be properly considered and handled through the appropriate nonprofit corporation process.

A Board member whose child is attending a nonprofit corporation school should be aware of their role as a Board member when interacting with nonprofit corporation employees about their child.

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director designee shall provide a copy of the state's open meeting laws (Brown Act) to each Board member and to anyone who is elected to the Board but has not yet assumed office.

Board members and persons elected to the Board who have not yet assumed office are responsible for complying with the requirements of the Brown Act.



OATH OR AFFIRMATION

It is a tradition of the Board that, prior to entering office, all Board members take an oath or affirmation.

The following oath may be administered and certified by the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and/or the Board President:

"I, ______ do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter."

ORIENTATION

The Board recognizes the importance of providing all newly elected Board members with support and information to assist them in becoming effective members of the Board. Incoming Board members are provided an orientation designed to build their knowledge of the nonprofit corporation and an understanding of the responsibilities of their position. Such orientation may include the provision of information, support, and/or training related to Board functions, policies, protocols, and standards of conduct.

As early as possible following the election of Board members, one or more orientation sessions may be held during open meeting(s) of the Board or scheduled 1:1 meetings with the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director and other staff. The Board President and the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall develop an agenda for the meeting(s) and identify resources useful for incoming Board members.

Upon their election, incoming Board members shall be provided a copy of the Brown Act and informed that, pursuant to Government Code 54952.1, they must conform to the Act's requirements as if they had already assumed office. Incoming Board members must also complete a Form 700 within 30 days of assuming office in accordance with the Political Reform Act. Additional information for incoming Board members may include, but is not limited to, Board bylaws related to the limits of individual Board member authority, the conduct of Board meetings, and other Board operations; governance standards for ethical conduct; legal requirements related to conflict of interest and prohibited political activity; protocols for speaking with nonprofit corporation staff, members of the public, and the media; and publications on effective governance practices.

In addition, the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall provide incoming Board members with specific background information regarding the nonprofit corporation, including, but not limited to, the nonprofit corporation's vision and goals statements, local control and accountability plan and other comprehensive plans, student demographic data, student achievement data, nonprofit corporation policy manual, nonprofit corporation budget, and minutes of recent open Board meetings.

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee may offer incoming Board members a tour of the nonprofit corporation's administrative offices and facilities, and may introduce them to the nonprofit corporation and charter school site administrators and other staff.

Incoming members are encouraged, at the nonprofit corporation's expense and with approval of the Board, to attend charter school organization workshops and conferences relevant to the needs of the individual member, the Board as a whole, or the nonprofit corporation.







BOARD TRAINING

The Board's ability to effectively and responsibly govern the nonprofit corporation is essential to promoting student achievement, building positive community relations, and protecting the public interest in the nonprofit corporation that operates charter school(s). Board members shall be provided sufficient opportunities for professional development that helps them understand their responsibilities, stay abreast of new developments in education, and develop boardsmanship skills.

The Board and/or the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall provide an orientation to newly elected or appointed Board members which includes comprehensive information regarding Board roles, policies, and procedures and the nonprofit corporation's vision and goals, operations, and current challenges. Throughout their first term, Board members shall continue to participate in additional educational opportunities designed to assist them in understanding the principles of effective governance, including, but not limited to, information on school finance and budgets, student achievement and assessment, labor relations, community relations, program evaluation, open meeting laws (the Brown Act), conflict of interest laws, and other topics necessary to govern effectively and in compliance with law.

Board members will be responsible for participating in required training programs, including but not limited to ethics training as set forth in AB 2158 (commencing on January 1, 2025). All Board members are encouraged to continuously participate in advanced training in order to reinforce boardsmanship skills and build knowledge related to key education issues. Such activities may include online courses, webinars, webcasts, and in-person attendance at workshops and conferences. In addition, workshops and consultations may be held within the nonprofit corporation on issues that involve the entire governance team.

Board members may attend a conference or similar public gathering with other Board members and/or with the

Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee in order to develop common knowledge and understanding of an issue or engage in team-building exercises. In such cases, a majority of the Board members shall not discuss among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled program, business of a specified nature that is within the nonprofit corporation's jurisdiction, so as not to violate the Brown Act open meeting laws.

Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, on the Board training activities they attend, for the purpose of sharing the acquired knowledge or skills with the full Board and enlarging the benefit of the activity to the Board and nonprofit corporation.

REMUNERATION & REIMBURSEMENT

Compensation

Each member of the Board of Directors (Board) may receive a monthly compensation of \$650.00.

On an annual basis, the Board may adjust the compensation of Board members in an amount that is just and reasonable to the nonprofit corporation based on the services performed by the Board members and in consideration of comparable compensation that is paid to individuals holding similar positions at similarly-sized nonprofit organizations in the same geographic location. The Board shall adopt such compensation based on the comparable analysis, which may include a compensation study.

Board members are not required to accept payment for meetings attended.

A member may be compensated for meetings they missed when the Board finds that they were performing designated services for the nonprofit corporation that operates charter school(s) at the time of the meeting or that they were absent because of illness, jury duty, or a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Board members shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred when performing authorized services for the nonprofit corporation. Expenses for travel, telephone, business meals, or other authorized purposes shall be in accordance with policies established for the nonprofit corporation personnel and at the same reimbursement rate.

Board members shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred when performing services directed by the Board.

Authorized purposes may include, but are not limited to, attendance at educational seminars or conferences designed to improve Board members' skills and knowledge; participation in regional, state, or national organizations whose activities affect the nonprofit corporation's interests; attendance at the nonprofit corporation or community events; and meetings with state or federal officials on issues of community concern. Personal expenses shall be the responsibility of individual Board members. Personal expenses include, but are not limited to, the personal portion of any trip, alcohol, entertainment, laundry, expenses of any family member who is accompanying the Board member on the nonprofit corporation-related business, personal use of an automobile, and personal losses and traffic violation fees incurred while at the nonprofit corporation.

Any questions regarding the propriety of a particular type of expense should be resolved pursuant to the fiscal policy.

BOARD POLICIES

The Board shall adopt written policies to convey its expectations for actions that will be taken in the nonprofit corporation, clarify roles and responsibilities of the Board and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, and communicate board philosophy and positions to students, staff, parents/guardians, and the community.

The nonprofit corporation's policy development process may be revised or expanded as needed based on the issue being considered, the need for more information, or the desire to provide greater opportunities for consultation and public input.

Policies shall become effective upon Board adoption or at a future date if so designated by the Board at the time of adoption.

The Board shall prescribe and enforce rules for its own governance consistent with state law and regulations.

Bylaws governing Board operations may be amended in accordance with the process set forth in the Bylaws.

BOARD POLICIES (CONT.)

Monitoring and Evaluation

At any time, the Board and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee may determine that progress reports to the Board on the implementation and/or effectiveness of the policy should be scheduled. If so, the Board and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall agree upon a timeline and, as applicable, measures for evaluating the effectiveness of the policy in achieving its purpose.

Access to Policies

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall provide for public access to current Boardadopted policies, such as by posting policies to the website or making them available upon request.

As necessary, the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall notify staff, parents/guardians, students, and other stakeholders whenever a policy that affects them is adopted or revised. They may determine the appropriate communication strategy depending on the issue. Policies shall be posted on the website when required by law.

AGENDA & MEETING MATERIALS

Any board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request shall be submitted in writing to the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee with supporting documents and information.

The Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director shall decide whether a request from a member of the public is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Items not within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board may not be placed on the agenda. In addition, before placing the item on the agenda, the Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director shall determine if the item is merely a request for information or whether the issue is covered by an existing policy.

If the Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director do not place an item on the agenda, the Board member may request the Board to take action to determine whether the item shall be placed on the agenda.

The Board President and Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director shall also decide, in accordance with the Brown Act, whether an agenda item is appropriate for discussion in open or closed session, and whether the item should be an action item subject to Board vote or an information item that does not require immediate action.

In order to promote efficient meetings, the Board may bundle a number of items and act upon them together by a single vote through the use of a consent agenda. Consent items shall be items of a routine nature and items for which Board discussion is not anticipated and for which the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director recommends approval. When any Board member requests the removal of an item from the consent agenda, the item shall be removed and given individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item.

At least 72 hours before each regular meeting, each Board member shall be provided a digital copy of the agenda and other available documents pertinent to the meeting.



AGENDA & MEETING MATERIALS (CONT.)

When special meetings are called, board members shall receive, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting, notice of the business to be transacted.

Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may confer directly with the Executive Director/CEO or designee to ask questions and/or request additional information on agenda items. However, a majority of Board members shall not, outside of a noticed meeting, directly or through intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take action on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

MEETING CONDUCT

All Board meetings shall begin on time and shall follow an agenda prepared in accordance with board Bylaws and posted and distributed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (open meeting requirements), the Charter Schools Act and other applicable laws.

The Board shall adopt and enforce a policy for public participation at meetings, which shall include the requirements of the Charter Schools Act for establishing two-way conference locations and posting recordings of the meetings.

The Board believes that late night meetings deter public participation, can affect the Board's decision-making ability, and can be a burden to staff. Regular board meetings shall be held between the hours of 8:00am to 4:00pm; if any Special or Emergency Board Meetings are held, they shall be adjourned by 10:00 p.m. unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority of the Board. The meeting shall be extended no more than once and subsequently may be adjourned to a later date.

Minutes

The Board recognizes that maintaining accurate minutes of Board meetings helps foster public trust in Board governance and provides a record of Board actions for use by nonprofit corporation staff and the public.

The Secretary shall keep minutes and record all official Board actions. The Board's minutes shall be public records and shall be made available to the public upon request.

The minutes of Board meetings shall include, but not be limited to:

MEETING CONDUCT (CONT.)

1. A notation of which Board members are present, in person or by teleconference, and whether a member is not present for part of the meeting due to late arrival and/or early departure

2. A list of the public comments made on agendized items and non-agendized topics

3. The specific language of each motion and the names of the Board members who made and seconded the motion

5. Any action taken by the Board, and the vote or abstention on that action of each Board member present

Upon request by a student's parent/guardian, or by the student if age 18 or older, the minutes shall not include the student's or parent/guardian's address, telephone number, date of birth, or email address, or the student's name or other directory information as defined in Education Code 49061. The request to exclude such information shall be made in writing to the Secretary.

The Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or designee shall distribute a copy of the "unapproved" minutes of the previous meeting(s) with the agenda at a subsequent regular meeting. The Board shall approve the minutes as circulated or with necessary amendments.

Upon approval by the Board, the minutes shall be signed by the Board President and Board Clerk. Official Board minutes shall be stored in a secure location and shall be retained in accordance with law.

Any minutes kept for Board meetings held in closed session shall be kept separately from the minutes or recordings of regular and special meetings. Minutes of closed sessions are not public records.

BOARD SELF EVALUATION

The Board shall annually conduct a self-evaluation in order to demonstrate accountability to the community and ensure that nonprofit corporation governance effectively supports student achievement and the attainment of the nonprofit corporation's vision and goals.

The evaluation may address any area of Board responsibility, including, but not limited to, Board performance in relation to vision setting, curriculum, personnel, finance, policy development, collective bargaining, community relations, and advocacy. The evaluation may also address objectives related to Board meeting operations, relationships among Board members, relationship with the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, understanding of Board and Executive Director roles and responsibilities, communication skills, or other governance or boardsmanship skills.

The Board shall evaluate itself as a whole. Individual Board members are also expected to use the evaluation process as an opportunity to assess and set goals for their own personal performance.

BOARD SELF EVALUATION (CONT.)

Each year, the Board, with assistance from the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director, shall determine an evaluation method or instrument that measures key components of Board responsibility and previously identified performance objectives. Visual and/or audio recordings of a Board meeting may only be used as an evaluation tool when consent is given by all Board members.

Any discussion involving the Board's self-evaluation shall be conducted in open session.

At the request of the Board, a facilitator may be used to assist with the evaluation process. The Board may invite the Superintendent/CEO/Executive Director or other individual(s) with pertinent information to provide input into the evaluation process.

Following the evaluation, the Board may set goals, define and/or refine protocols, and establish priorities and objectives for the following year's evaluation. The Board may also develop strategies for strengthening Board performance based on identified areas of need, including, but not limited to, additional training or mentorship.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO EVALUATION

The Board and Executive Director/CEO shall annually develop and agree upon performance goals and objectives that shall serve as the basis for an annual evaluation. The evaluation process shall follow a timeline mutually agreed to by the Board and the Executive Director/CEO.

The Board shall devote a portion of at least one meeting annually for discussion and evaluation of the performance and working relationship between the Executive Director/CEO and the Board. Such meetings shall be conducted in closed session, unless mutually agreed otherwise, and allow the option to deliberate privately without the Executive Director/CEO present when discussing the final conclusions of an evaluation.


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION PI ANNING

Short-Term Absence Procedures

The Board should follow the procedures listed below in the event the Executive Director/CEO is temporarily unable to fulfill their duties due to an emergency or planned short term absence.

- 1. Immediate Notification: The Executive Director/CEO or Assistant Director of Human Resources will inform the Board President as soon as possible about the temporary incapacity or absence and will support the Board with communication, as directed by the **Board President**
- 2. Special Board Meeting: As needed, convene a Special Board meeting to discuss the situation and potential impact.
- 3. Acting Executive Director/CEO: Consult with Human Resources for the name of the Executive Director/CEO's recommended Acting Executive Director/CEO.
- 4. Review and Monitor: The situation should be reviewed at regular intervals to decide if the Acting Executive Director/CEO should continue in the role or if the regular Executive Director/CEO can resume duties.
- 5. Transition Back: Once the Executive Director/CEO resumes duties, a transition plan should be established to ensure a smooth return.



Emergency Vacancy Procedures

This section provides a guide for the Board of Directors in case the seat of the Executive Director/CEO becomes permanently vacant through unplanned circumstances. This ensures the continuity of leadership and minimizes disruption in the organization.

- 1. Immediate Notification: The Assistant Director of Human Resources will inform the Board President as soon as possible about the emergent vacancy and will support the Board with communication, as directed by the Board President
- 2. Special Board Meeting: Convene a Special Board meeting within 48 hours to discuss the situation and potential impact.
- 3. Interim Executive Director/CEO: Consult with Human Resources for the name of the Executive Director/CEO's recommended Interim Executive Director/CEO.
- 4. Search Committee: If needed, appoint an Executive Director/CEO Search Committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board's Directors with the support of other staff as appropriate, such as the Assistant Director of Human Resources. Define the committee's scope, authority, and limitations in writing. Consider and decide whether the Search Committee will conduct the search itself or employ a recruiter or search firm to help find candidates. If using a recruiter/search firm, the Search Committee will be its primary point of contact and will guide the search outside of full Board meetings.
- 5. Interviews and Selections: Establish unbiased, pre-defined criteria for candidate assessment. Conduct interviews and select a candidate based on these criteria. Keep detailed records for compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity laws.
- 6. Contract Development: Involve legal counsel to draft and review the employment contract. Ensure alignment with state and federal employment laws.
- 7. Public Announcement: In the open session of a Regular Board Meeting, the Board President or Assistant Director of Human Resources will verbally summarize the employment contract's salary and benefits provisions for the Board and the public before the Board votes to approve the contract.
- 8. Transition Plan: Develop a comprehensive transition plan for both the outgoing Interim Executive Director/CEO and incoming Executive Director/CEO Powered by BoardOnTrack

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION PLANNING (CONT.)

Planned Vacancy Procedures

This section provides a guide for the Board of Directors in case the seat of the Executive Director/CEO becomes vacant through planned circumstances. This ensures the continuity of leadership and minimizes disruption in the organization.

Option 1 :

During the course of the Executive Director/CEO's active employment, the Executive Director/CEO will develop a formal leadership pipeline to identify and nurture talent at all levels of the organization. The Executive Director/CEO will arrange for a transition period where they mentor the successor, in order to ensure a smooth transfer of knowledge and responsibilities.

- 1. **Initial Notice:** The Executive Director/CEO should provide written notice of departure as stipulated in their contract, including a minimum notice period.
- 2. **Board Meeting:** Convene a Special Board Meeting to initiate a plan and timeline for the vacancy.
- 3. **Contract Development:** Involve legal counsel to draft and review the employment contract. Ensure alignment with state and federal employment laws.
- 4. **Public Announcement:** In the open session of a Regular Board Meeting, the Board President or Assistant Director of Human Resources will verbally summarize the employment contract's salary and benefits provisions for the Board and the public before the Board votes to approve the contract.
- 5. **Transition Plan:** The Executive Director/CEO will arrange for a transition period where they mentor the successor, in order to ensure a smooth transfer of knowledge and responsibilities.





Option 2:

- 1. **Initial Notice:** The Executive Director/CEO should provide written notice of departure as stipulated in their contract, including a minimum notice period.
- 2. Board Meeting: Convene a Special Board Meeting to initiate a plan and timeline for the vacancy.
- 3. Search Committee: If needed, appoint an Executive Director/CEO Search Committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board's Directors with the support of other staff as appropriate, such as the Assistant Director of Human Resources. Define the committee's scope, authority, and limitations in writing. Consider and decide whether the Search Committee will conduct the search itself or employ a recruiter or search firm to help find candidates. If using a recruiter/search firm, the Search Committee will be its primary point of contact and will guide the search outside of full Board meetings.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SUCCESSION PLANNING (CONT.)





4. Interviews and Selections: Conduct interviews and select a candidate based on unbiased and

predefined criteria. Keep detailed records for compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity laws.

5. Contract Development: Involve legal counsel to draft and review the employment contract. Ensure

alignment with state and federal employment laws.

6. Public Announcement: In the open session of a Regular Board Meeting, the Board President or Assistant

Director of Human Resources will verbally summarize the employment contract's salary and benefits

provisions for the Board and the public before the Board votes to approve the contract.

7. Transition Plan: Develop a comprehensive transition plan for both outgoing and incoming Executive

Director/CEO

Coversheet

Ethics Assembly Bill 2158

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: VIII. Oral Presentations B. Ethics Assembly Bill 2158 Discuss

EACS Ethics Training.pptx.pdf

Ethics Assembly Bill 2158

November 14, 2024 Board Study Session Excel Academy Charter Schools



AB 2158

The purpose of AB 2158 is to expand the definition of "local agency officials" to expressly include the governing board and members of school districts, county offices of education, and charter schools. Since these public officials make important decisions that may carry ethical implications, the State Legislature has determined that they should receive ethics training to the same extent as other local agency officials.

1. Each local agency official who, as of January 1, 2025, is a member of the governing board of a school district, a county board of education, or the governing body of a charter school, except for officials whose term of office ends before January 1, 2026, should receive training in ethics before January 1, 2026.



Ethics Training Requirement

An ethics course must meet the criteria in Government Code section 52335 to satisfy the ethics training requirement. Those requirements are:

- The course must consist of **at least two hours** of training on general ethics principles and ethics laws relevant to the official's public service.
- The course must cover the core content outlined in Government Code section 53234(d) and California Code of Regulations title 2, section 18371.
- The course must be developed in consultation with the Fair Political Practices Commission and the Attorney General.
- The course provider must provide the participants with proof of participation.

| Ethics Assemby Bill 2158



Options for Ethics Course

Option 1

The Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) has published online training for local agency officials that satisfy the ethics training requirements. The course is self-paced.

Option 2

Board Study Session with Legal Counsel, two-hour requirement.



Options for Ethics Course

Option 1

The Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) has published online training for local agency officials that satisfy the ethics training requirements. The course is self-paced.

- Provides case studies of different types of conflicts of interest
- There are 7 lessons with "check your understanding" questions at the end of each lesson
- There is no final assessment
- You can log in and out, and start where you left off
- You must spend a minimum of 2 hours on the course. The time is logged and if you click through the whole course in under 2 hours, you will be required to do additional training.
- When you create an account, all agencies can be listed on your account. The custodian of records at each charter is required to keep a copy of the certificate on file. The proof of completion will list all charter organizations on one line.



Options for Ethics Course

Option 2

Board Study Session with Legal Counsel, two-hour requirement.

- Would the Board like to explore this option?
- If yes, would the Board like look into whether or not the 2 hours could be broken up over multiple shorter study session?



Control No: 341117

Public Service Ethics Education **Online Proof of Participation Certificate**

Date of Completion: Sep 23, 2024

Training Time*: 2 hr. 8 min.

This course is an overview course on all public service ethics issues necessary to satisfy the requirements of Article 2.4 of Chapter 2 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code, including the following:

- Laws relating to personal financial gain by public servants, including, but not limited to, laws prohibiting bribery and conflict-of-interest laws.
- Laws relating to claiming perquisites ("perks") of office, including, but not limited to, gift and travel restrictions, prohibitions against the use of public resources for personal or political purposes, prohibitions against gifts of public funds, mass mailing restrictions, and prohibitions against acceptance of free or discounted transportation by transportation companies.
- Government transparency laws, including, but not limited to, financial interest disclosure requirements and open government laws.
- Laws relating to fair processes, including, but not limited to, common law bias prohibitions, due process requirements, incompatible offices, competitive bidding requirements for public contracts, and disqualification from participating in decisions affecting family members; and
- General ethical principles relating to public service.

The Fair Political Practices Commission and Attorney General have reviewed this course for course sufficiency and accuracy.



By signing below, I certify that I fully reviewed the content of the entire online AB 1234 course approved by the Attorney General and Fair Political Practices Commission and am entitled to claim two hours of public service ethics law and principles credit.

Participant Signature

Participant Name

Agency Name

NOTE TO PARTICIPANT: Please provide a copy of this proof of participation to the custodian for such records at your agency. In addition, we recommend you make a copy of this proof of participation for your own records to retain for at least five years. To preserve the integrity of the online certification process; these certificates are only available upon completing the online session. * To satisfy AB 1234 requirements, this certificate must reflect that the public official spent two hours or more reviewing the materials presented in the online course. If the certificate reflects less than two hours, the participant should have on file additional certificates demonstrating that the official has satisfied the entire two hour requirement.

Coversheet

Performance Evaluation Planners for 2024/25 - Presented by Megan Anderson, Director of Human Resources

Section:VIII. Oral PresentationsItem:C. Performance Evaluation Planners for 2024/25 - Presented by MeganAnderson, Director of Human ResourcesPurpose:DiscussSubmitted by:Related Material:Performance Planner 2425 (1).pdf





Table of Contents

- 1 SCHOOL GOALS
- 2-3 PERFORMANCE TIMELINE
- 4 5 C'S OF DOCUMENTATION
- 5 EDUCATION OBSERVATION TEMPLATES
- 6 STANDARD EVALUATIONS
- 7 HR PERFORMANCE RESOURCES
- 8 TO DO LIST TEMPLATE
- 9 MONTHLY GOALS TEMPLATE



School Goals

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

Sustainable growth through strategic planning and optimizing resources in relationship to our budget. New student recruitment initiatives through community outreach, relationship building, community providers, demographic research and marketing through diverse mixed media.

RETENTION

Sustainably retaining students through high academic expectations, intervention, innovation, quality programs and collaboration. Staff retention through improvements and initiatives that increase positive culture, oversight, accountability, professional development and support.

QUALITY PROGRAMS

Offer students innovative personalized programs that offer flexibility, and independent learning recognizing the whole child and their needs both academic and social and emotional. Empower individual teams to deliver diverse programs and pathways developed from data analysis of assessment and academic portfolios built on integrity, accountability and compliance. Empower parents with a comprehensive knowledge base and continuous support through engagement, development and learning opportunities.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Growing, enhancing and developing skills in our staff. Defining and demonstrating roles and responsibilities, identifying strengths and weaknesses through a growth mindset evaluation platform. Providing methods of support including training and access to materials to enhance performance. Emphasizing how teamwork and using individual strengths contribute to success.

1_{51 of 59}



SUPERVISORS, MANAGERS AND ADMINISTRATORS SHOULD SET CLEAR EXPECTATIONS WITH STAFF AND UNDERSTAND RESOURCES AVAILABLE TOWARDS IMPROVING POOR PERFORMANCE AND ENSURING STAFF ARE MEETING EXPECTATIONS.

**** The following timeline and resources are suggested tools given by Human Resources. Each department leader should feel empowered to complete observations, reviews and engage in expectations and goal setting sessions as they see applicable to their staff and expertise of duties as assigned in their department.

It is mandatory for all supervisors to engage in AT LEAST one mid year performance review and one annual performance evaluation of each staff member. Supervisors can use any tools they see applicable to complete these tasks as long as they share them with Human Resources. Supervisors and staff must at least use the HR provided materials attached if they do not use proprietary systems.

ACTION	DUE DATE	DESCRIPTION
Mid Year Evaluations or Observations	JAN Completed no later than end of January	 Certificated teaching and direct service/ instruction staff should be observed via informal or formal observations depending on the department's rotating schedule. All new hires will be subject to a formal observation. All other staff will meet with supervisors to conduct informal midyear evaluation. These semi annual evaluations will be a check in to identify areas of improvement and highlight strengths. Evaluations can be completed verbally to review expectations and re- defined as needed. Administrators will review the evaluation documents from all departments and schedule 1:1 with staff as applicable based on performance deficits.
New Hire Probationary Observations	MAR	New hires will be formally observed and assessed based on the Observation/Coaching form; areas of strength and weakness will be documented and discussed.
Evaluation Tracking Sheets and Error and Achievement Submissions Due	MAY	All applicable department leads will complete and submit " Evaluation Tracking Sheet to contribute to overall staff evaluation and collect data in performance
Annual Self- Evaluation	APR	Each individual staff member will complete a self-evaluation to indicate how they view their annual performance and goal achievement was.
Annual Employee Evaluation	MAY	Using informal mid-year evaluations, peer feedback, observations and evaluation tracking forms, AD's will conduct the final evaluation of staff members.
Employee Reviews 1:1 (if applicable)	MAY/ JUNE	Staff members with performance concerns, scheduled PIP's and non-renewal agreements will be notified via 1:1 meeting with supervisor and Human Resources.
Overall Employee Evaluations emailed and uploaded to Paycom	JUNE	

l's of Vocumentation

Clear

When documenting performance concerns and situations be clear in your notes, conference summary, counseling form or written reprimand. Using all available details, get as specific as possible using dates, times and major details.

Concise

Stick to the details and the facts; avoid using judgment or conclusions.

Correct

Make sure all your information is correct and corroborated through data, evidence or details provided by other employees, parents etc

Complete

Make sure to close the loop. When addressing specific performance concerns, discuss and outline solution timelines; make sure follow up is scheduled and completed. Always lean into HR so support!

Communication

Keep dialog open, engage in follow up conversations, comprehension checks and progress updates. Make sure your expectations are not only always properly communicated but comprehensive.



EVALUATIONS

Administrative Evaluations will be completed using SuperEval. SuperEval is a comprehensive performance management tool that assists Administrators and Executive staff members set goals and track progress through an online tool. This tool allows an evaluation process for their own leadership teams, administrators, and staff that includes a methodology of goal attainment, reflective practice, self-assessment, and exhibiting evidence, all leading to meaningful conversations. The evaluation methodology transcends an event of compliance to a process of greater meaning and value. Thereafter, SuperEval expanded to include the entire leadership team.



Employee Evaluation – The google Evaluation forms below should be completed by the employees supervisor and then reviewed department Admin oversight.

CERTIFICATED EDUCATOR EVAL

CLASSIFIED BUSINESS SERVICES

Self Evaluation - The google Evaluation forms below should be completed by the employee themselves. This will be the exact Evaluation that will be conducted by the supervisor so performance analysis can be directly compared.



PERFORMANCE RESOURCES

CLICK TO VIEW & DOWNLOAD



<u>INSPIRE</u>



<u>FRISK</u>







Performance Success Plan



Performance Improvement Process



Performance Improvement Plan



Verbal Reprimand Form



Written Reprimand Form

To schedule 1:1 performance support from HR please use the following link

Performance Support



To Do List

NO.	то до	\checkmark
		\square
		\bigcup
		\square
		\square
		\square
		\square
		\square
		\square
		\square
		\square
S		
NOTES		
ž		

DATE :

MONTHLY GOALS

WEEK 1	WEEK 2	WEEK 3	WEEK 4

WEEK 5





Motes: